
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

 
December 11, 2018 

 

CALENDAR 
 

Dec 11 5:30 p.m. Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Dec 11 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Dec 11 
Immediately 

following 
Board Member Reception, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Dec 18 8:00 a.m. 
Regular Meeting/Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services 
Center 

Jan 8 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 
 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 

 
C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 
D. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 

Central High School 

Memorial High School 
 

E. MINUTES 

November 27, 2018 – Public Work Session 
November 27, 2018 – Regular Board Meeting 
December 4, 2018 – Special Board Meeting 

 
F. GIFT ACCEPTANCE - The administration recommends Board acceptance 

with appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 

 
G. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 

 Consideration of Claims 
 

 Bond Sale Results - The Business Office reports results on the First 

Mortgage Bonds, Series 2018A and 2018B. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 

school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

 Fuel Bids – The Business Office recommends awarding bids for the 

purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for calendar year 2019. 
 



BOARD AGENDA December 11, 2018 
 
 

2 
   

H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy 3422.06S - Secretarial/Business Compensation Plan – The 

administration presents revisions to Board Policy 3422.06S - Secretarial/ 
Business Compensation Plan, and asks to waive 2nd reading. 
 

 Board Policy 3422.12S - Employees in Miscellaneous Positions 
Compensation Plan - The administration presents revisions to Board Policy 
3422.12S - Employees in Miscellaneous Positions Compensation Plan, and 

asks to waive 2nd reading. 
 

 Board Policy 7510 - Use of School Facilities and Property - The 

administration presents revisions to Board Policy 7510 - Use of School 
Facilities and Property, for initial consideration. 
 

 Board Policy 8452.01 - Administration of Stock Emergency Medicines - The 
administration presents revisions to Board Policy 8452.01 - Administration 
of Stock Emergency Medicines, for initial consideration. 

 
 Stipends for Support Staff – The administration recommends approval of 

stipends for support staff. 
 

 Elkhart Area Career Center Agreements – The administration recommends 

Board approval of the Elkhart Area Career Center agreements with its 
feeder schools. 
 

 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of 
overnight trip requests. 
 

 Budget Reductions – The Superintendent presents recommendations for 
2019 budget reductions for Board approval. 
 

 Approval of Superintendent’s Contract 
 

I. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 
requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended 
by the administration. 

 
 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 

 
J. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 

 

 From Audience 

 
 From Superintendent and Staff 

 

 From Board 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
November 27, 2018 

 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 
5:30 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Karen S. Carter Susan C. Daiber 

Present: Douglas K. Weaver Rodney J. Dale 

 Jeri E. Stahr Carolyn R. Morris 

   

Absent:  Glenn L. Duncan 

   

ECS Personnel    

Present: Bruce MacLachlan Kevin Schott 

 Mark Mow  
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard a review from Bruce MacLachlan, director of transportation, 

of Door Side Stops of all busses in the District. 
 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 5:55 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, President 
 
 
____________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Vice President 
 
 
____________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Secretary 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 

 
 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

November 27, 2018 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Karen S. Carter Susan C. Daiber 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Rodney J. Dale 

 Jeri E. Stahr Carolyn R. Morris 
   
Absent:  Glenn L. Duncan 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Karen Carter called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited.   

 

Call to 
Order 

Babette Boling, incoming Board member, recited the Elkhart Promise. The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mrs. Carter discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 

 

 

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representatives from 
both high schools introduced themselves:  Central Kharyzma Williams, a 

senior from Central High School (CHS) and Kylie Webb, a sophomore 
from Memorial High School (MHS).  Ms. Williams also participates in 
theater, orchestra, and is the editor-in-chief of the Blazer Pennant.  Ms. 

Williams reported the Central/Memorial basketball game is Friday, 
November 30th; over Thanksgiving break the Lady Blazers beat the #8 
ranked Fishers High School; music departments are preparing for 

holiday programs; and final exams begin the week of December 17th.  
Ms. Webb stated the student government is beginning to plan for 
Coming Home week in January; National Honor Society members 

painted windows at Big R and helped with the recent stuff a bus; 
academic super bowl is starting to meet; chess club starts their 
competitive season in January; and academic letters can now be earned 

based on GPA, SAT/ACT and participation in academic competition. 
 

SSAC 
Representatives 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 

donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS): twenty-five $50 
gift cards from Dr. David and Mrs. Lori Fairchild to teachers at Riverview 
for classroom supplies; $500 from 14 Friends, to North Side for the 

Intense Interventions class coffee cart program; four violin bows for the 
music departments from Sharon Stauffer, with fair market values from 
Quinlan & Fabish Music Company totaling $840; $500 from National Flag 

Football to Pierre Moran for athletic programs; and $25,000 from Rich 
and Babette Boling, for renovations to Rice Field and North Side Gym. 

Gift Acceptance 



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes: 
November 13, 2018 – Regular Board Meeting 

November 20, 2018 – Public Work Session 
 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 

$5,870,563.93 as shown on the November 27, 2018, claims listing.  
(Codified File 1819-62)   
 

Payment of 

Claims 

The Board received a financial report from Kevin Scott, chief financial 
officer, for the period January 1 – October 31, 2018. 
 

Financial Report 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a Transfer of Appropriations 
Resolution to transfer appropriations in the 2018 tax funds.  (Codified 
File 1819-63) 

 

Transfer 
Appropriations 
Resolution 

 
By unanimous action, the Board approved an extra-curricular purchase 
of chimes for West Side’s band in the amount of $3,449. 

 

Extra-Curricular 
Purchase Request 

 
By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 

activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1819-64) 

 

Fundraisers 
 

Mr. Scott provided the current insurance report stating year-to-date 
continues to reflect reduced costs. 

Insurance 
Update 

 
By unanimous action, the Board authorized supplemental payments to 
teachers, as initially presented at the November 13th regular meeting.  

(Codified File 1819-65) 
 

Supplemental 
Payments 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the 2019-2020 school 

calendar as initially presented at the November 13th regular meeting.  
(Codified File 1819-66) 
 

2019-2020 

School 
Calendar 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an overnight trip request for 
18 EACC Ag/Motorcycle/Outdoor Power Technician students to travel to 
Indianapolis on December 4 - 7 for Hot Rodders National championship. 

 

Overnight Trip 
Request 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 

administration on the November 27, 2018 listings. (Codified File 1819-
67) 
 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 
 

Personnel 
Report 

  



3 
 

Employment of the following two (2) certified staff members for 
the 2018-2019 school year:  

Nathan Eckley, science at Memorial, effective 1/7/19 
Chloe McRobbie, social studies at Pierre Moran, effective 

1/7/19 

 

Certified 
Employment 

 

Retirement of certified employee, Linda Liechty, special education 
at Eastwood, effective 12/21/18 with 17 years of service. 

 

Certified 
Retirement 

 
Resignation of certified staff member staff member Tamara 
Patillo-Terry, grade 6 at Feeser, effective 11/30/18. 

Certified 
Resignation 

 
Maternity leave for certified staff member, Ashley Perez, 
kindergarten at Beardsley, beginning 11/28/18 and ending 4/5/19. 

 

Maternity 
Leave 

 
Employment of the following eight (8) classified employees who 
have successfully completed their probationary period on dates 

indicated: 
Brian Guy - custodian at Beardsley, 11/24/18 
Kyseidra Jackson - bus driver at Transportation, 11/16/18 

Michael McMahon - paraprofessional at Riverview, 11/24/18 
Linda Miller- food service at Pinewood, 11/26/18 

Amanda Norman - paraprofessional at Daly, 11/14/18 
Natasha Norwood - bus driver at Transportation, 11/15/18 
Mary Patton - food service at Pinewood, 11/16/18 

Melissa White - food service at Cleveland, 11/14/18 
 

Classified 
Employment 

 

Resignation of the following two (2) classified employees effective 

on the dates indicated: 
Susan Bonder - paraprofessional at Tipton, 11/20/18 

Rose Ramirez-Arias - paraprofessional at Hawthorne, 
11/20/18 

 

Classified 

Resignation 
 

Retirement of classified employee Marilou Snell, secretary at ECS, 
effective 1/18/19, with 30 years of service.  

Classified 
Retirement 
 

Leave for the following three (3) classified employees, on dates 
indicated: 

Jamie Bontreger - social worker at Hawthorne, beginning 

11/27/18 and ending 12/7/18 
Haley Burkhart - physical therapist at PACE, beginning 

11/12/18 and ending 3/5/19 

Sybil Lee - secretary at Pierre Moran, beginning 9/21/18 
and ending 1/7/19 

 

Classified 
Leave 
 

Mark Mow, interim superintendent, noted there is a special Board 
meeting on Tuesday, December 4th at 3:00 p.m. and next regular Board 
meeting is December 11th. 

From the 
Superintendent 
 

  



4 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:25 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Vice President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Secretary 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Rodney J. Dale, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 

  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
December 4, 2018 

 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

approximately 3:00 p.m. 

Place/Time 

Board Members Karen S. Carter Susan C. Daiber 

Present: Douglas K. Weaver Rodney J. Dale 
 Jeri E. Stahr Carolyn R. Morris 
   

Absent:  Glenn L. Duncan 
 

Roll Call 

President Karen Carter called the special meeting of the Board of School 

Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 

Order 

President Carter opened the public hearing on the Superintendent's 

contract.  Doug Thorne, District Counsel/Chief of Staff reviewed the 
contract and discussed the required notice of publication.   
 

President Carter opened the floor for public comment.  In response to 

audience questions, the Board responded the Superintendent's salary is 
determined through negotiations with the Superintendent and Board of 
School Trustees, and the Superintendent pays the same premiums for 

insurance as other administrators.  With no further comments from 
audience members, President Carter closed the public hearing. 
 

Public Hearing on 

Superintendent’s 
Contract 

The meeting adjourned at 3:05 p.m. Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Karen S. Carter, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Vice President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Secretary 
 
 

____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 

  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

Signatures 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
DATE:  November 29, 2018 
 
TO:  Mr. Mark Mow 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
FROM: Jacque Rost, MHS Athletic Director 
 
RE:  Donation Approval 
 
We are in receipt of an extracurricular donation in the amount of $3,000.00 for 
the girls/boys track team.  This donation will go towards the purchase of team 
sweats, team shirts, shoes, equipment, and other miscellaneous costs associated 
with this program. 
 
I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this 
donation and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is 
sent to: 
 
Mr. Dana Homo 
20399 S.R. 120 
Bristol, IN   46507 
 













policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 1 of 16 
 
 
 
 

SECRETARIAL/BUSINESS COMPENSATION PLAN 

 
 
The Board of School Trustees hereby adopts the following wage schedule for 
secretaries commencing January 1, 20182019.  In addition, the three percent (3%) 
employee contribution to PERF will be paid by the Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

    II II.3 II.6 III III.3 III.6 IV IV.3 IV.6 V 

1 0 – 55 days 11.67 11.86 12.09 12.30 12.60 12.92 13.24 13.74 14.19 16.46 

2 55 days – 1 year 11.95 12.19 12.47 12.76 13.20 13.64 14.08 14.53 14.99 17.26 

3 1 year plus 12.30 12.61 12.92 13.24 13.69 14.15 14.48 14.94 15.45 17.73 

4 2 years plus 12.76 13.20 13.64 14.08 14.46 14.84 15.25 15.70 16.18 18.45 

5 3 years plus 13.24 13.67 14.08 14.48 14.99 15.54 16.06 16.53 17.00 19.27 

6 4 years plus 14.08 14.46 14.84 15.25 15.74 16.29 16.83 17.30 17.76 20.03 

7 5 years plus 14.48 14.99 15.54 16.06 16.69 17.32 17.93 18.38 18.86 21.13 

 
*subject to Sections B-1 and B-2 of this policy. 
 
Those secretaries who work in the evening on a regular basis shall be paid an 
additional twenty-five cents ($.25) per hour for evening hours. 
 
 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 2 of 16 
 
Secretarial Classifications 
 
The following job classifications will be in effect for the wage schedule listed above, 
subject to other sections of this policy: 
 
Classifications 

V  Secretarial    Business   

Classified Human Resources Assistant Certified Payroll Assistant 

Classified Payroll Assistant 
Insurance (effective January 1, 2018) 
 

IV.  Secretarial    Business   

Board of School Trustees 
Director of Career & Technical Ed.  
High School Principal 
Secretary/Human Resources 
Data Specialist – Instructional Leadership 

Building Services Office Manager 
Payroll Assistant 
Director of Business Operations 
EACC – WVPE Office Manager 
Director of Transportation 
Mail Room/Duplicating 
        

III.  Secretarial    Business 

 
EACC Principal 
EACC Central Office/Guidance/Accounting 
Elementary Principal 
High School Athletics/Student Activities 
High School Vice-Principal 
High School Registrar 
Middle School Principals 
Elkhart Academy 
Student Services Secretary (5 positions) 
Receptionist 

Library Services (CO) 
*Federal Programs 
Instructional Leadership 
 

Business Office/Purchasing  
Cafeteria 
Building Services Supply Coordinator 
Director of Food Services 
Safety & Security 
Mail/Copy Center  
 

II.  Secretarial    Business 

Adult & Community Ed. Data Entry 
Adult & Community Ed. Receptionist 
Office Assistants  

High School Assistant Principal 
High School Media Center 
Middle School Assistant 
 

EACC- Office  
PACE Program 
Teenage Parent Program 

Clerical Asst. / Food Service (MHS) 

*Subject to reclassification if this position becomes funded from the General Fund. 
 
There will be an increase equal to the base increase for any secretary who by 
placement of the classifications listed in A of this section would receive less than the 
base increase raise. 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 3 of 16 
 
 
 A. Commencement of Employment 
   
  Upon a secretary’s commencement of employment with the Elkhart 

Community Schools, such secretary may, at the discretion of the 
superintendent/authorized designee, be placed at any of the first 
six (6) steps of the salary schedule.  The secretary will serve a fifty 
five (55) calendar-day probationary period. 

   
  A secretary will proceed to the next step when she/he accumulates 

the time normally required to qualify for progression to the next step 
of the wage schedule, unless performance is such that the 
immediate supervisor recommends the step movement be withheld.  
This recommendation shall be made at the end of the probationary 
period of no more than eight (8) weeks, nor fewer than six (6) weeks, 
prior to the anniversary date of the secretary in question. 

   
 B. Transfer of Job Classification 
   
  At the discretion of the employer, a secretary may be assigned to fill 

another secretarial position vacancy without the need to post the 
vacancy, so long as both positions are within the same department, 
and both positions are in the same job classification.  In the event 
that a secretary transfers from one job classification to another, the 
secretary will normally be placed on probation in the new position, 
but will continue to receive benefits. The provisions as written above 
shall be applicable except when a presently employed secretary who 
is at the top step is transferred, and in that case the transferred 
secretary may be placed at her/his present step position by the 
Director of Human Resources. 

   
 C. Reclassification of Positions 
   
  The administration retains the authority to reclassify positions when 

it determines that it is in the best interest of the Corporation. 

   
  In addition, the Secretarial Negotiations Committee may, during 

their annual discussions with the administration, propose 
reclassification of secretarial positions. 

   



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 4 of 16 
 
 
 D. Secretarial Career Increment Schedule 
   
  The amounts as listed will be added to the salary of any secretary 

whose years of employment in the Elkhart Community Schools 
would qualify for such. 

   

 Years Regularly Employed in Elkhart Community 

Schools 

Hourly  

Increment 

   
 five (5) or more, but less than ten (10) $.20 

   
 ten (10) or more, but less than fifteen (15) $.30 

   
 fifteen (15) or more, but less than twenty (20) $.50 

   
 twenty (20) or more $.70 

 
Mentor Program 
 
Any secretary who serves as a mentor shall be given a stipend of $100 per calendar 
year.  Mentors shall be assigned at the sole discretion of the Director of Human 
Resources at the time a secretary is assigned to a new position. 
 
Fringe Benefits 
 
Income Protection and Annuities 
 
The Elkhart Community Schools provides the opportunity for regular classified 
employees to purchase income protection and tax sheltered annuities.  This is done 
by specifications and through a company or broker approved by the Board of 
Schools Trustees of the Elkhart Community Schools. 
 
Insurance 
 

In addition to the basic salary schedule, the Elkhart Community Schools contributes 
toward a policy for each regular classified employee, working 30 or more hours per 
week, who is a member of the group hospitalization, major medical and life 
insurance program approved by the Board of School Trustees.  Eligible employees’ 
may select one of the plans provided by the Board.    
 
The amount of life insurance coverage is an amount equal to the employee’s annual 
salary or wages rounded up to the next thousand dollars.  The Board will contribute 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 5 of 16 
 
ninety percent (90%) of the premium cost of a group long-term disability insurance 
policy for employees who work thirty (30) or more hours per week. 
 
Severance Benefits 
 
Secretarial employees who have completed a minimum of six (6) months of active 
service with the Elkhart Community Schools will be eligible for the following benefits 
upon written resignation received by the Director of Human Resources at least ten 
(10) working days prior to the last date of employment. 
 
 A. Resignation 
   
  Employees shall be paid for unused personal business leave in the 

current year of employment.  Vacation days earned in the current 
year shall also be paid to full time employees.  Payment for unused 
personal leave and vacation shall be made at the rate of pay in effect 
at termination.  The effective date of resignation shall be established 
to include use of all personal leave and unused vacation days. 

   
 B. Retirement, Death, or Disability - The benefits listed below are in 

addition to those in Section A. 
   
 1. As used in this section, “retirement” shall be defined as 

resignation by a secretarial employee who is age sixty (60) 
and has ten (10) or more consecutive years of employment; or 
who is fifty-five (55) years of age or older and has fifteen (15) 
or more consecutive years of employment; or who is fifty (50) 
years of age or older and has twenty (20) consecutive years of 
employment in the Elkhart Community Schools.   

   
 2. The Board will contribute $3,000 per year to be applied to 

the single or family plan insurance premium until age 
sixty-five (65) for each secretary, age sixty (60) or beyond, who 
retires with notice received in the office of the Superintendent 
three (3) months in advance. In the event of an emergency, 

relief from the required three (3) month notice may be granted 
at the Superintendent’s discretion. 

   
  In addition, for the secretary who has fifteen (15) years of 

experience, is age fifty five (55), and has been participating in 
the group health and life insurance program for at least the 
last five (5) years, the employee, by paying one hundred 
percent (100%) of the annual premium until age sixty, and by 
paying $1,250 less than one hundred percent (100%) of the 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 6 of 16 
 

annual premium until age sixty five (65), may continue in the 
group insurance plan until age sixty five (65). 

   
  Also this benefit will be discontinued if the retired secretary 

becomes employed on a full time school year or calendar year 
basis, or if through other employment qualifies for health 
insurance benefits.  The employer reserves the right to 
request the employment status of the retired secretary. 

   
 3. A retiring secretary will be paid his/her daily rate multiplied 

times the number of years of service in the Elkhart 
Community Schools. 

   
 4. A maximum of thirty-five (35) accumulated days of unused 

personal leave will be paid to a secretarial employee who 
retires, dies or becomes totally permanently disabled while 
employed by the Elkhart Community Schools.  Vacation days 
earned in the current year shall also be paid prior to 
retirement, or upon disability termination or death of the 
employee.  In the event of death, the above benefit shall be 
paid to the decedent’s estate. 

   
 5. In addition to the above benefits, the actual number of 

days of accumulated sick leave, not to exceed a maximum of 
twelve (12) days or forty-five percent (45%) of the 
accumulated sick leave days, whichever is greater, shall be 
paid to a secretarial employee at the time of retirement, or to 
the secretary’s beneficiary in the event of the death of a 
secretary eligible for retirement. 

   
 6. During the month of January, any secretary who has perfect 

attendance, other than vacation, bereavement, or personal 
leave, shall be paid the sum of $500 for each year.  Any 
employee who is absent for any reason for five (5) or less 
days, other than vacation, bereavement, or personal leave 

days, shall be paid the sum of $250. 
 
Change in Support Classification 
 
When any classified employee is employed in another classified employee group, all 
comparable benefits will remain in effect.  Years of accrued service and accumulated 
benefit days will continue, subject to Board Policy 3413S. 
 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 7 of 16 
 
Absences 
 
When unable to report for work, it is the employee’s responsibility to notify and give 
the reason for absence to his/her immediate supervisor as soon as possible.  This 
notice is to be given at least one-half (1/2) hour before the time that the employee 
regularly reports for work, except for bus drivers, who should give at least one 
hour’s notice.  Upon return to work, the employee shall file a report of absence.  
Deductions for absence will be made at the daily rate unless covered by an absence 
policy.  (No absence report is necessary on emergency closing days when pay is not 
to be received.) 
 
All classified employees employed four (4) or more hours are entitled to certain 
illness and leave benefits.  Absences for all classified personnel in addition to the 
days to which they are entitled shall be considered to be unexcused, except those for 
which prior approval has been granted.  Any absence of an employee may, at the 
discretion of the employer, be subject to proper and sufficient verification 
satisfactory to the employer.  Three (3) days’ unexcused absences in any one school 
year shall be considered excessive and shall be grounds for suspension or 
termination.  Upon written request received by the appropriate administrator, at 
least two (2) weeks in advance (except in emergencies), unpaid absences of five (5) or 
less consecutive working days may be approved.  The best interests of the school 
corporation will be considered. 
 
Absences and Leaves 
 
Personal/Family Illness Absence 
 
Full-time Secretaries 
 
Full-time secretaries will be allowed the number of hours equal to one (1) workday 
per month of employment for personal illness/family illness absence. This will 
provide ninety six (96) hours of personal illness/family illness absence annually. 
Unused personal illness/family illness absence may accumulate to a total of the 
number of hours equal to two hundred fifteen (215) days as personal illness days. 
 

School-year Secretaries 
 
 A. Regular school year classified employees will be allowed the number 

of hours equal to one (1) workday per month of employment for 
personal illness/family illness leave. 

   
 B. Any unused hours will accumulate as personal illness absence to a 

total of the number of hours equal to one hundred fifty (150) 
workdays.  Use of accumulated sick leave by a school year employee 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 8 of 16 
 

terminates at the close of the school year.  It cannot be used again 
unless the employee is employed for the following school year or 
employed at a later date. 

 
All Secretaries 
 
The Elkhart Community Schools may request a doctor’s approval to return to work 
following an illness. 
 
Family Illness Leave 
 
 A. As used in this section, “immediate family” includes a secretary’s 

spouse, child, step-child, sister, brother, mother, father, mother in 
law, father in law, sister in law, brother in law, grandparent, 
grandchild, daughter in law, son in law, and any other member of 
the family unit who is regularly living in the same household as the 
secretary. “Family unit” shall mean any person related to the 
employee, genetically or by marriage, or any person for whom the 
employee is the legal guardian. 

   
 B. A secretary shall be entitled to the number of hours equal to two (2) 

paid days for family illness leave per calendar year, provided that 
such leave shall be for the sole purpose to care for a member of the 
secretary’s immediate family who becomes seriously ill and requires 
both medical attention by a licensed physician and the care and 
attention of the secretary.  Such medical attention provided may be 
requested to be verified by a licensed practicing physician.  Unused 
family illness will accumulate as illness absence. 

   
 C.  When an emergency medical condition of an employee’s immediate 

family necessitates personal care by the employee for an extended 
period of time (days), the employee may annually use five (5) or less 
days of personal illness to provide such care.  This is in addition to 
family illness provisions already provided. 

 

Job-Related Injury 
 
An employee injured in the performance of his/her duties is eligible for Worker’s 
Compensation.  The employee is required to complete an injury report form on the 
day of the injury and to visit the designated medical facility as directed by the 
employer.  Time required for the employee to recuperate from any personal injury 
arising out of and in the course of employment responsibility shall be governed by 
Indiana laws regarding Worker’s Compensation.  Worker’s Compensation 
benefits will begin after seven (7) calendar days at a rate of sixty six and two thirds 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 9 of 16 
 
percent (66-2/3%) of the employee’s average wage rate.  The employee’s share of the 
health/life insurance premium must be paid in advance to the Business Office or 
insurance will be terminated.  An employee may receive full pay by using available 
illness absence, personal business, and/or vacation benefits. 
 
Personal Leave 
 
Secretarial/Business staff members are entitled to the number of hours equal to 
three (3) workdays for absence for personal reasons during each calendar year 
without loss of pay.  A personal leave request form shall be completed and 
submitted to the appropriate administrator to accompany the payroll report for the 
period in which the absence occurs. 
 
Unused personal leave will accumulate for retirement. 
 
Secretarial/Business Personal Leave - Procedure 
 
Request for personal leave shall be made by completing the classified personal leave 
request form and giving such form to the employee’s supervisor, or authorized 
designee, no less than twenty-four (24) hours in advance.  In the event of an 
unforeseen emergency beyond the control of the employee, which makes it 
impossible to give the twenty-four (24) hours advance notice, the employee shall 
notify the employer as soon as reasonably possible.  When such is the case, the 
written request shall be completed no later than the first day of return from the 
absence. 
 
For less than 12-month secretaries, except for emergencies, personal business hours 
shall not be used for the sole purpose of extending the school vacation periods of 
Fall Recess, Thanksgiving, Winter Recess, Spring Break or Summer Break as 
defined by the school calendar unless the employee complies with the following 
procedure: 
 
 A. Once every five three (53) years an employee may use personal 

business hours to extend a holiday or vacation period described 
above by exchanging two personal business hours for each personal 

business hour taken adjacent to the holiday or vacation period. 
   
 B. The employee must give notice, in writing, to the Office of the 

Superintendent ten (10) working days in advance of taking said day. 
   
 C. All emergency requests for personal business immediately preceding 

or immediately following vacation periods shall be granted only upon 
approval of the Superintendent or designee.  For the purpose of 
determining when an emergency exists, “emergency” shall be defined 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 10 of 16 
 

as an unforeseen event that prohibits the employee from attending 
to his/her assigned duties. 

 
For 12-month secretaries, personal business leave may be taken at any time upon 
the approval of the supervisor or authorized designee. 
 
No personal leave will be granted for participation in any strike or work stoppage or 
other concerted action by an employee or employee group. 
 
Bereavement 
 
Each regular classified employee shall be entitled to be absent from work without 
loss of compensation on account of death in the immediate family for a period 
extending not more than seven (7) consecutive calendar days immediately beyond 
each death. 
 
“Immediate family” is defined as father, mother, step-parents, brother, sister, 
spouse, child, step-children, grandfather, grandmother, grandchild, father in law, 
mother in law, sister in law, brother in law, son in law, daughter in law, or any other 
member of the family unit regularly living in the same household as the employee. 
 
Up to one (1) day’s absence shall be granted without loss of compensation to attend 
the funeral of another relative. 
 
When requested, additional bereavement day(s) with or without pay may be granted 
by the Superintendent or designee. 
 
A secretary shall be entitled to up to one (1) paid day per year, to be taken in 
increments of no less than two hours for an absence, to attend the funeral of a close 
friend, upon the condition that the requested absence must not create a serious 
problem in the secretary’s work setting. 
 
Military Leave 
 
A leave of absence may be granted by the Board of School Trustees on the 

recommendation of the Superintendent to any regular employee who may be 
required or shall elect to enter the military service.  This will permit the employee to 
return to take a comparable position after s/he receives an honorable discharge. 
 
An employee who, as a reserve member of the armed forces of the United States or of 
the National Guard, is called on to receive temporary military training shall be 
entitled to temporary leave of absence not to exceed fifteen (15) days in any one (1) 
calendar year.  Such absence shall result in no loss of wages.  When the employee 
has received the military pay s/he shall present the check or a copy of the check to 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 11 of 16 
 
the payroll office, whereupon a deduction equal to the per diem pay will be made for 
each day of paid absence from the next payroll check.  Upon return from temporary 
training or leave, the employee will be restored to a comparable position without loss 
of vacation, sick leave, or other benefits of employment. 
 
Health Leave 
 
Through Board of School Trustees’ action regular classified employees may be 
granted a health leave after one (1) year of service.  Requests for health leave by an 
employee must be submitted in writing and must be supported by a physician’s 
statement. 
 
The Board of School Trustees, after examining medical evidence, may place a regular 
employee on leave for health reasons if, in its judgment, the physical or mental 
health of the employee is interfering with the successful performance of his/her 
responsibilities. 
 
Health leaves may be granted for a maximum period of one (1) year.  An employee 
shall be afforded the opportunity to continue participation in any insurance program 
in which s/he is enrolled.  Such participation shall be at the employee’s own 
expense. 
 
Health Leave – Procedure 
 
An employee with at least one year’s service, who has used all of his/her personal 
illness, personal leave, FMLA Leave, and vacation benefits, may be placed on a 
health leave. 
 
 A. After all other available benefit days have been exhausted, or 
   
 B. When a physician’s statement indicating inability to perform regular 

duties for an extended period of time has been provided, or 
   
 C. Upon receipt of a request for placement on such leave by the 

Director of Human Resources from the appropriate administrator. 

 
Should the employee fail to provide a requested physician’s statement within 
thirty (30) days after s/he has used all benefits, it will be grounds for termination.  
In addition, the employer may require an employee to have an examination by a 
physician.  The cost of any such examination will be paid by the employer 
 
In the event an employee is incapacitated, a family member or legal guardian may 
submit the request for health leave, and any required documentation. 
 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 12 of 16 
 
An employee may return from health leave with a physician’s statement indicating 
the ability to perform the job responsibilities.  Employment will be held for a period 
of up to one (1) year.  After the employee has been on leave for a year, s/he will be 
eligible for re-employment when an opening for which s/he is qualified becomes 
available. 
 
Jury and Witness Duty Pay 
 
 A. Jury Duty 
   
  All secretaries will be granted excused absence when they are 

subpoenaed to serve on the jury.  Such absence shall result in no 
loss of wages.  When the employee has received her/his jury duty 
check, the check or copy of the check shall be presented to the 
payroll office, whereupon a deduction equal to jury duty pay will be 
made from the next payroll check. 

   
 B. Witness Duty 
   
  In the event an employee is subpoenaed to serve as a witness, 

except in cases noted below, and gives testimony before a court of 
law or governmental administrative agency, the employee shall be 
granted absence to witness for the time during the working day 
which the employee is required to be present.  Such absence, up to 
three (3) days for any one case, shall result in no loss of wages.  For 
cases involving extended absence to witness, the Superintendent 
may grant additional days with pay, with substitute deduction 
where applicable, or without pay.  When the employee is in receipt of 
his/her witness duty check, a copy of the check shall be presented 
to the payroll office, whereupon a deduction equal to witness duty 
pay will be made from the next payroll check.  The employee will not 
be paid when such testimony is given in any employee relations 
related litigation involving the employer or any other school 
employer, unless the employer subpoenas the employee to testify. 

 

Parental Leave 
 
A leave, without pay, may be granted to any expectant parent upon written request 
of the employee to the Director of Human Resources.  In the event the employee is 
pregnant, the leave may be requested to begin any time between thirty (30) days 
after the Director of Human Resources is notified of the pregnancy and thirty (30) 
days after the birth of the child.  For employees who are not pregnant, the leave may 
be requested to begin any time within thirty (30) days of the date the child is 
expected in the home.  In cases of emergency the thirty (30) day notification period 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 13 of 16 
 
may be waived.  Leaves may be requested for a period not to exceed one year, and 
are non-renewable. 
 
The staff member shall return to the first position which becomes available for which 
s/he is qualified, as determined by the employer, or waive any right to re-
employment.  For the period of the leave, a staff member may continue in any group 
insurance program for which s/he is eligible, at his/her own expense, by paying the 
full cost of premiums in advance at the Business Office. 
 
Adoptive Leave 
 
An employee who legally adopts a child whose age is less than six (6) years old shall 
be entitled to use family illness leave days to serve as the primary caregiver for the 
adoptive child.  In order to be eligible for paid adoptive leave the employee must 
notify the Director of Human Resources and the employee’s immediate supervisor of 
the request for adoptive leave upon acceptance of the application for adoption.  All 
such leaves shall commence on the date the child is physically turned over to the 
employee for the employee’s care and legal custody. 
 
Holidays and Vacations 
 
Definitions 
 
 A. As used in this policy, the term "full-time employee" means an 

employee who is employed on a twelve month basis and who has a 
regular workday of four (4) or more hours. 

   
 B. As used in this policy, the term "school-year employee" means an 

employee who is employed on a school-year basis and works 
approximately 175 or more days per year, and who has a regular 
workday of four (4) or more hours. 

 
Holidays 
 
 A. Full-time employees shall be paid for the following holidays, when 

they occur on days which would have been worked if it were not for 
that special day, subject to the provisions below: 

   
  New Year’s - two (2) days (See Sec. A.1.) 
    
  Martin Luther King Jr. Day  
    
  Presidents’ Day (See Sec. A.4.) 
    



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 14 of 16 
 
  Memorial Day  
    
  Independence Day - two (2) days (See Sec. A.2.) 
    
  Labor Day  
    
  Thanksgiving - two (2) days (See Sec. A.3.) 
    
  Christmas - two (2) days (See Sec. A.1.) 
    
 1. During the winter break (when schools are closed) four (4) 

days will be allowed as follows: 
   
 a. When January 1 and December 25 fall on a weekday, 

they shall be paid holidays, and a classified employee 
may, subject to approval of the immediate supervisor, 
select either but not both, December 24 or 
December 26 as a holiday with pay, and may, subject 
to approval of the immediate supervisor, select either 
but not both, December 31 or January 2 as a holiday 
with pay.  To be eligible for either of the above 
selections, a classified employee must make such 
request to the immediate supervisor no later than 
December 10. 

   
 b. When January 1 and December 25 fall on a weekend, 

then both the Friday before and the Monday after shall 
be paid holidays, unless schools are open on one of 
these days, in which case an alternate day will be 
determined. 

   
 2. When any holiday is celebrated on a weekend, it will be a paid 

holiday on the Friday preceding or the Monday following, 
unless school is in session. 

   

 3. Thanksgiving Day and the day following will be paid holidays. 
   
 4. Presidents’ Day will be a paid holidays. 
   
 B. School-year classified employees shall be paid for the following 

holidays when they occur on days which they would have worked if 
it were not for that special day, subject to the provisions above: 

    
  Martin Luther King Jr. Day  



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 15 of 16 
 
    
  Presidents’ Day  
    
  Memorial Day  
    
  Labor Day  
    
  Thanksgiving - two (2) days (See Sec. A.3.) 
    
  Christmas - two (2) days (if celebrated on a weekend, it will be paid 

holiday on the Friday preceding or the Monday following 
 
Vacations 
 
 A.  A full-time employee, who has, as of December 31, been employed 

by the Elkhart Community Schools for less than one (1) calendar 
year, shall be entitled to one (1) working day vacation with pay 
during the calendar year, for each full month of employment 
completed, provided no more than ten (10) vacation days may be 
accrued. Vacation benefit may not be utilized prior to accrual 

and approval from Administrator. 
   
 B. A full time employee, who has, as of December 31 of each year, been 

employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for that entire 
calendar year, shall be entitled to ten (10) working days vacation 
with pay during the next calendar year. 

   
 C. A full time employee, who has, as of December 31 of each year, been 

employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for six consecutive 
years, is entitled to fifteen (15) working days vacation with pay 
during the next calendar year. 

   
 D. A full time employee, who has, as of December 31 of each year, been 

employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for fifteen (15) 
consecutive years, is entitled to twenty (20) working days vacation 

with pay during the next calendar year. 
   
 E. A full time employee, who has, as of December 31 of each year, been 

employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for twenty (20) 
consecutive years, is entitled to twenty-five (25) working days 
vacation with pay during the next calendar year. 

   
 F. Years shall be considered "consecutive" so long as any interruption 

of service did not include other employment. 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 16 of 16 
 
   
 G. For the sole purpose of determining vacation benefit eligibility; 

employees who transfer from a school-year position to a 12-month 
position will be granted years of service based on the following 
conversion formula. NOTE: the years of service conversion is only 
applicable for the purpose of vacation benefits. This computation does 
not replace the total years of service invested with Elkhart Community 
Schools for the purposes of Retirement benefits or Staff Recognition.   
 
The employee’s employment record with Elkhart Community 
Schools for all positions held will be considered. Using the number 
of paid hours per day, multiplied by the number of paid days per 
school year, divided by 2080 to obtain the number of years 
equivalent to a 12-month position. The total number of equivalent 
years will be rounded up to nearest whole number. 
 
The calculated number of years of service will be used in 
determining the total number of day’s vacation which such full-time 
employee is entitled to receive under this policy. The employee will 
receive the total amount of awarded vacation days effective the 
January following their date of conversion. Prior to completing one 
full year of service, the employee will be entitled to a prorated 
amount of vacation days based on the calculation formula 
referenced in the paragraph above. 

   
 H. Dates requested for use as vacation days shall be submitted to the 

immediate supervisor prior to the first day of requested vacation, 
and shall be subject to the approval of the immediate supervisor.   

   
  When vacation days for secretaries have been requested and 

approved but are not able to be used due to administrative directive, 
an extension of up to three (3) months will be granted for the use of 
such day(s). 

   
 I. Vacation days will be available to the staff member during the 

twelve (12) months of the calendar year and for six (6) months 
beyond.  

   
 J. A school-year employee will not be entitled to paid vacation days. 
 
 
 
May 8, 2018December 11, 2018 



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 1 of 15 
 

EMPLOYEES IN MISCELLANEOUS POSITIONS COMPENSATION PLAN 

 
The Board of School Trustees hereby adopts the following wage schedule for 
Employees to be effective for August 14, 2018January 1, 2019.  In addition, the 
three percent (3%) employee contribution to PERF will be paid by Elkhart 
Community Schools. 

POSITION HOURLY 
 WAGE RANGE 

Assistant Supervisor of Transportation 23.54 – 29.07 

Transportation Trainer/Dispatcher 19.61 – 22.92 

Food Service Truck Driver 15.75 – 18.71 

Food Service Receiving/Supply 15.75 – 18.71 

Evening Supervisor of Building Services 20.64 – 25.41 

Food Service Training Specialist 17.84 – 24.99 

Food Service Bids & Commodity Coordinator 16.99 – 26.55 

Executive Chef & Culinary Event Coordinator 16.99 – 26.55 

Quality Assurance Coordinator 19.61 – 22.92 

Production Coordinator 19.61 – 22.92 

Transportation Route/Driver Coordinator 19.61 – 22.92 

Adult/Community Education Non-Contract Teachers 32.06 * 

Building Community Education Coordinator 27.41 – 34.27 

Radio Station Staff Announcer 9.24 – 13.14 

Radio Station Development Assistant 10.75 – 17.19 

School Security Officer 30.00** 

Title I/Funded Pupil/Program/Parent Support Person 19.58 – 28.52 

Title I/Building Translator/Interpreter 19.58 – 28.52 

Title I/Building Translator/Parent Liaison 15.35 – 19.25 

School Parent/Community Liaison 19.58 – 28.52 

District Translator 19.58 – 28.52 

Evening Events Supervisor 14.82 

Asst. Site Coordinator - 21st Century Community Learning Center  14.00 

After-School Community Education Organized Activities Leader 14.00 

After-School Community Education Organized Activities Assistant 9.39 

Deaf/Hard of Hearing Educational Interpreter 16.12 – 30.10 

Early College Data Specialist 24.24 – 27.70 

EACC Testing Specialist 24.24 – 27.70 

21st Century Community Education Program Manager 28.00 – 33.00 

Campus Security – I 12.00 – 20.00 

Campus Security – II 14.00 – 22.00 

*    Hourly rate based on .001 of the certified teacher’s base salary set forth in 
Appendix B of the 2017-2018 Master Contract 

**      Effective August 1, 2017



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 2 of 15 
 
 

POSITION YEARLY 
 SALARY RANGE 
Radio Station Manager 49,673 – 73,798 

Radio Station Development Director 46,748 – 70,738 

Radio Station Business Account Manager  36,896 – 69,562 

Radio Station Program Director 36,896 – 56,766 

Radio Station Senior Reporter and Assignment Editor 31,875 – 46,672 

Radio Station Reporter and Editor 30,281 – 44,338 

Radio Station Operations Manager 25,545 – 41,865 

Radio Station Morning Edition Host 28,991 – 45,636 

Radio Station Promotions Manager 29,818 – 44,367 

Radio Station Membership Manager 38,741 – 52,384 

Olweus Bullying Prevention Program Coordinator 42,664 – 57,723 

Assistant Supervisor of Building Services 55,049 – 68,811 

Adult and Community Education Program Manager 63,518 – 74,105 

Data and Assessment Manager 63,518 – 74,105 

Data Specialist 37,619 – 59,116 

Digital Communication Specialist 37,619 – 59,116 

Staff Accountant 40,000 – 50,000 

School Psychologist Intern 36,230 

21st Century Community Learning Center Coordinator 2,500 (per semester) 

 
An hourly employee who is required to report to work to respond to an emergency 
outside of the employee’s regular work hours will be paid for a minimum of two (2) 
hours. 
 
Performance Awards for Radio Station Employees 
 
The Radio Station Manager may propose performance awards to be paid to radio 
station employees who achieve performance goals established by the Station 
Manager and approved by the Chief Financial Officer. 
 
The proposed goals, once approved by the Chief Financial Officer, shall be presented 

in writing to the radio station employee. 
 
Radio station employees who achieve their performance goals shall be paid their 
award during the fiscal year when the goal is met. 
 



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 3 of 15 
 
Fringe Benefits 
 
 A. Income Protection and Annuities 
   
  The Elkhart Community Schools provides the opportunity for 

regular classified employees to purchase income protection and tax 
sheltered annuities.  This is done by specifications and through 

company or broker approved by the Board of Schools Trustees of the 
Elkhart Community Schools. 

 
   
 B. Insurance 
   
  In addition to the basic salary schedule, the Elkhart Community 

Schools contributes toward a policy for each regular classified 
employee, working 30 or more hours per week, who is a member of 
the group hospitalization, major medical and life insurance program 
approved by the Board of School Trustees.  Eligible employees’ may 
select one of the plans provided by the Board. 

   
  The amount of life insurance coverage is an amount equal to the 

employee’s annual salary or wages rounded up to the next thousand 
dollars.  The Board will contribute ninety percent (90%) of the 
premium cost of a group long-term disability insurance policy for 
employees who work thirty (30) or more hours per week. 

   
 C. Severance Benefits 
   
  Employees in Miscellaneous Positions who have completed a 

minimum of six (6) months of active service with the Elkhart 
Community Schools will be eligible for the following benefits upon 
written resignation received by the Director of Personnel at least 
ten (10) working days prior to the last date of employment. 

   
 1. Resignation 
   
  Employees shall be paid for unused personal business leave 

in the current year of employment.  Vacation days earned in 
the current year shall also be paid to full-time employees.  
Payment for unused personal leave and vacation shall be 
made at the rate of pay in effect at termination.  The effective 
date of resignation shall be established to include use of all 



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 4 of 15 
 

personal leave and unused vacation days. 
   
 2. Retirement, Death, or Disability 
   
  The benefits listed below are in addition to those in 

Employees’ Fringe Benefits. 
   

 a. For purposes of this benefit, “retirement” shall be 
defined as resignation by an employee who at the time 
of retirement is age sixty (60) and has ten (10) or more 
consecutive years of employment in the Elkhart 
Community Schools.  Only the six (6) months service 
requirement must be met to be eligible for the 
disability or death benefit. 

   
 b. A maximum of thirty (30) accumulated days of unused 

personal leave will be paid to eligible employees who 
retire, die, or become totally permanently disabled 
while employed by the Elkhart Community Schools. In 
the event of death, the benefit shall be paid to the 
decedent’s estate. 

   
 c. In addition, employees who are fifty five (55) years of 

age or older and have at least fifteen (15) years of 
service and who have been insured under the Elkhart 
Community Schools’ group insurance plan for at least 
the last five (5) years, shall be eligible to continue in 
that program until age sixty five (65) by paying 100% of 
the premiums in advance at the business office. 

   
 d. A miscellaneous employee who retires at age fifty-

five (55) or older with ten (10) or more consecutive 
years of service, or a miscellaneous employee who dies 
with ten (10) or more consecutive years of service is 
eligible to select one of the following benefits based 
upon the employee’s daily rate at the time of 
retirement: 

   
 1) One (1) day’s pay for each full year employed by 

the Elkhart Community Schools, or 
   
 2) At least forty-five percent (45%) of the unused 



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 5 of 15 
 

sick leave will be paid, in accordance with the 
provisions in the Employees employee booklet. 

   
 In the case of the death of an eligible employee, this 

benefit will be paid to the employee’s beneficiary. 
   
 e. Any miscellaneous employee who has perfect 

attendance, other than vacation, bereavement, or 
personal leave, in any full year subsequent to January 
1, 2006, shall be paid the sum of $100 for each year at 
the time of retirement.  Any employee who is absent for 
any reason for five (5) or less days, other than vacation, 
bereavement, or personal leave days, shall be paid the 
sum of $50 for each year at the time of retirement. 

   
 D. Change in Classification 
   
  When any classified employee is employed in another classified 

employee group, all comparable benefits will remain in effect.  Years 
of accrued service and accumulated benefit days will continue, 
subject to Board Policy. 

 
Absences 
 
When unable to report for work, it is the employee’s responsibility to notify and give 
the reason for absence to his/her immediate supervisor as soon as possible.  This 
notice is to be given at least one-half (1/2) hour before the time that the employee 
regularly reports for work.  Upon return to work, the employee shall file a report of 
absence.  Deductions for absence will be made at the daily rate unless covered by an 
absence policy. (No absence report is necessary on emergency closing days when pay 
is not to be received.) 
 
All classified employees employed four (4) or more hours are entitled to certain 
illness and leave benefits.  Absences for all classified personnel in addition to the 
days to which they are entitled shall be considered to be unexcused, except those for 
which prior approval has been granted.  Any absence of an employee may, at the 
discretion of the employer, be subject to proper and sufficient verification 
satisfactory to the employer.  Three (3) days’ unexcused absences in any one school 
year shall be considered excessive and shall be grounds for suspension or 
termination.  Upon written request received by the appropriate administrator, at 
least two (2) weeks in advance (except in emergencies), unpaid absences of five or 



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 6 of 15 
 
less consecutive working days may be approved.  The best interests of the school 
corporation will be considered. 
 
Personal Illness/Family Illness Absence 
 
As used in this section, “immediate family” includes spouse, child, sister, brother, 
mother, father, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, 

grandparent, grandchild, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, and any other member of the 
family unit who is regularly living in the same household as the employee.  “Family 
Unit” shall mean any person related to the employee, genetically or by marriage, or 
any person for whom the employee is the legal guardian. 
 
Full-time classified personnel will be allowed the number of hours equal to one 
workday per month of employment for personal illness/family illness absence.  This 
will provide ninety-six (96) hours of personal illness/family illness absence annually.  
Unused personal illness/family illness absence may accumulate to a total of the 
number of hours equal to two hundred (200) days as personal illness. 
 
Regular school-year classified employees will be allowed the number of hours equal 
to one (1) workday per month of employment for personal illness/family illness 
leave.   
 
Any unused hours will accumulate as personal illness absence to a total of the 
number of hours equal to 120 work days.  Use of accumulated sick leave by a 
school-year employee terminates at the close of the school year.  It cannot be used 
again unless the employee is employed for the following school year or employed at a 
later date. 
 
The Elkhart Community Schools may request a doctor’s approval to return to work 
following an illness. 
 
Job-Related Injury 
 
An employee injured in the performance of his/her duties is eligible for Worker's 
Compensation. The employee is required to complete an injury report form on the 
day of the injury and to visit the designated medical facility as directed by the 
employer.  Time required for the employee to recuperate from any personal injury 
arising out of and in the course of employment responsibility shall be governed by 
Indiana laws regarding Worker's Compensation.  Worker's Compensation benefits 
will begin after seven (7) calendar days at a rate of sixty six and two thirds 
percent (66-2/3%) of the employee's average wage rate.  The employee's share of the 
health/life insurance premium must be paid in advance to the Business Office or 



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 7 of 15 
 
insurance will be terminated.  An employee may receive full pay by using available 
illness absence, personal business, and/or vacation benefits. 
 
Bereavement 
 
Employees shall be entitled to be absent from work without loss of compensation on 
account of death in the immediate family for a period extending not more than 

seven (7) consecutive calendar days immediately beyond each death. 
 
“Immediate family” is defined as father, mother, brother, sister, spouse, child, 
grandfather, grandmother, grandchild, father-in-law, mother-in-law, sister-in-law, 
brother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, or any other member of the family unit 
regularly living in the same household as the employee. 
 
Up to one (1) day’s absence shall be granted without loss of compensation to attend 
the funeral of another relative. 
 
When requested, additional bereavement day(s) with or without pay may be granted 
by the Superintendent or designee. 
 
Military Leave 
 
A leave of absence may be granted by the Board of School Trustees on the 
recommendation of the Superintendent to any regular employee who may be 
required or shall elect to enter the military service.  This will permit the employee to 
return to take a comparable position after s/he receives an honorable discharge. 
 
An employee who, as a reserve member of the armed forces of the United States or of 
the National Guard, is called on to receive temporary military training shall be 
entitled to temporary leave of absence not to exceed fifteen (15) days in any one (1) 
calendar year.  Such absence shall result in no loss of wages.  When the employee 
has received the military pay he/she shall present the check or a copy of the check 
to the payroll office, whereupon a deduction equal to the per diem pay will be made 
for each day of paid absence from the next payroll check.  Upon return from 
temporary training or leave, the employee will be restored to a comparable position 
without loss of vacation, sick leave, or other benefits of employment. 
 
Health Leave 
 
Through Board of School Trustees’ action, regular classified employees may be 
granted a health leave after one (1) year of service.  Requests for health leave by an 



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 8 of 15 
 
employee must be submitted in writing and must be supported by a physician’s 
statement. 
 
The Board, after examining medical evidence, may place a regular employee on leave 
for health reasons if, in its judgment, the physical or mental health of the employee 
is interfering with the successful performance of his/her responsibilities. 
 

Health leaves may be granted for a maximum period of one (1) year.  An employee 
shall be afforded the opportunity to continue participation in any insurance program 
in which s/he is enrolled.  Such participation shall be at the employee’s own 
expense. 
 
Health Leave - Procedure 
 
An employee with at least one (1) year’s service, who has used all of his/her personal 
illness, personal leave, FMLA Leave, and vacation benefits, may be placed on a 
health leave. 
 
 A. After all available benefit days have been exhausted, or 
   
 B. When a physician’s statement indicating inability to perform regular 

duties for an extended period of time has been provided, or 
   
 C. Upon receipt of a request for placement on such leave by the 

Director of Personnel from the appropriate administrator. 
 
Should the employee fail to provide a requested physician’s statement within 
thirty (30) days after s/he has used all benefits, it will be grounds for termination.  
In addition, the employer may require an employee to have an examination by a 
physician.  The cost of any such examination will be paid by the employer. 
 
In the event an employee is incapacitated, a family member or legal guardian may 
submit the request for health leave, and any required documentation. 
 
An employee may return from health leave with a physician’s statement indicating 
the ability to perform the job responsibilities.  Employment will be held for a period 
of up to one (1) year.  After the employee has been on leave for a year, s/he will be 
eligible for re-employment when an opening for which s/he is qualified becomes 
available. 
 



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 9 of 15 
 
Personal Leave 
 
Full-time classified personnel are entitled to the number of hours equal to three (3) 
workdays for absence for personal reasons during each calendar year without loss of 
pay.  Regular school-year classified employees are entitled to the number of hours 
equal to two (2) workdays for absence for personal reasons during each calendar 
year without loss of pay.  A personal leave request form shall be completed and 

submitted to the appropriate administrator to accompany the payroll report for the 
period in which the absence occurs. 
 
Unused personal leave will accumulate for retirement. 
 
Personal Leave - Procedure 
 
Request for personal leave shall be made by completing the classified personal leave 
request form and giving such form to the employee’s supervisor, or authorized 
designee, no less than twenty-four (24) hours in advance.  In the event of an 
unforeseen emergency beyond the control of the employee, which makes it 
impossible to give the twenty-four (24) hours advance notice, the employee shall 
notify the employer as soon as reasonably possible.  When such is the case, the 
written request shall be completed no later than the first day of return from the 
absence. 
 
Except for emergencies, personal business hours shall not be used for the sole 
purpose of extending the school vacation periods of Fall Recess, Thanksgiving, 
Winter Recess, Spring Break or Summer Break as defined by the school calendar 
unless the employee complies with the following procedure: 
 
 A. Once every five three (53) years an employee may use personal 

business hours to extend a holiday or vacation period described 
above by exchanging two personal business hours for each personal 
business hour taken adjacent to the holiday or vacation period. 

   
 B. The employee must give notice, in writing, to the Office of the 

Superintendent ten (10) working days in advance of taking said day. 
   
 C. All emergency requests for personal business immediately preceding 

or immediately following vacation periods shall be granted only upon 
approval of the Superintendent or designee.  For the purpose of 
determining when an emergency exists, “emergency” shall be defined 
as an unforeseen event that prohibits the employee from attending 
to his or her assigned duties. 



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 10 of 15 
 
Jury and Witness Duty Pay 
 
Jury Duty 
 
All Employees in Miscellaneous Positions will be granted excused absence when they 
are subpoenaed to serve on the jury.  Such absence shall result in no loss of wages.  
When the employee has received her/his jury duty check, the check or copy of the 

check shall be presented to the payroll office, whereupon a deduction equal to jury 
duty pay will be made from the next payroll check. 
 
Witness Duty 
 
In the event an employee is subpoenaed to serve as a witness, except in cases noted 
below, and gives testimony before a court of law or governmental administrative 
agency, the employee shall be granted absence to witness for the time during the 
working day which the employee is required to be present.  Such absence, up to 
three (3) days for any one case, shall result in no loss of wages.  For cases involving 
extended absence to witness, the superintendent may grant additional days with 
pay, with substitute deduction where applicable, or without pay.  When the 
employee is in receipt of his/her witness duty check, a copy of the check shall be 
presented to the payroll office, whereupon a deduction equal to witness duty pay will 
be made from the next payroll check.  The employee will not be paid when such 
testimony is given in any employee relations related litigation involving the employer 
or any other school employer, unless the employer subpoenas the employee to 
testify. 
 
Parental Leave 
 
A leave, without pay, may be granted to any expectant parent upon written request 
of the employee to the Director of Personnel.  In the event that the employee is 
pregnant, the leave may be requested to begin any time between thirty (30) days 
after the Director of Personnel is notified of the pregnancy and thirty (30) days after 
the birth of the child.  For employees who are not pregnant, the leave may be 
requested to begin any time within thirty (30) days of the date that the child is 
expected in the home.  In cases of emergency the thirty (30) day notification period 
may be waived.  Leaves may be requested for a period not to exceed one (1) year, and 
are non-renewable. 
 
The staff member shall return to the first position which becomes available for which 
s/he is qualified, as determined by the employer, or waive any right to re-
employment.  For the period of the leave, a staff member may continue in any group 



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 11 of 15 
 
insurance program for which s/he is eligible, at his/her own expense, by paying the 
full cost of premiums in advance at the Business Office. 
 
Adoptive Leave 
 
An employee who legally adopts a child whose age is less than six (6) years old shall 
be entitled to use family illness leave days to serve as the primary caregiver for the 

adoptive child.  In order to be eligible for paid adoptive leave the employee must 
notify the Director of Personnel and the employee’s immediate supervisor of the 
request for adoptive leave upon acceptance of the application for adoption.  All such 
leaves shall commence on the date that the child is physically turned over to the 
employee for the employee’s care and legal custody. 
 
Holidays and Vacations 
 
Definitions 
 
 A. As used in this policy, the term "full-time employee" means an 

employee who is employed on a twelve-month basis and who has a 
regular workday of four (4) or more hours. 

   
 B. As used in this policy, the term "school year employee" means an 

employee who is employed on a school-year basis and works 
approximately one hundred seventy-five (175) or more days per year, 
and who has a regular workday of four (4) or more hours. 

 
Holidays 
 
 A. Full-time classified employees shall be paid for the following holidays, 

when they occur on days which would have been worked if it were not 
for that special day, subject to the provisions below: 

   
  New Year's - two days 
   
  Martin Luther King Jr. Day 
   
  Presidents Day 
   
  Memorial Day 
   
  Independence Day – two (2) days 
   



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 12 of 15 
 
  Labor Day 
   
  Thanksgiving - two (2) days 
   
  Christmas - two (2) days 
   
 

 1. During the winter break (when schools are closed) four (4) 
days will be allowed as follows: 

   
 a. When January 1 and December 25 fall on a weekday, 

they shall be paid holidays, and a classified employee 
may, subject to approval of the immediate supervisor, 
select either but not both December 24 or 
December 26 as a holiday with pay, and may, subject 
to approval of the immediate supervisor, select either 
but not both December 31 or January 2 as a holiday 
with pay.  To be eligible for either of the above 
selections, a classified employee must make such 
request to the immediate supervisor no later than 
December 10. 

   
 b. When January 1 and December 25 fall on a weekend, 

then both the Friday before and the Monday after shall 
be paid holidays, unless schools are open on one of 
these days, in which case an alternate day will be 
determined. 

   
 2. When any holiday is celebrated on a weekend, it will be a paid 

holiday on the Friday preceding or the Monday following, 
unless school is in session. 

   
 3. Thanksgiving Day and the day following will be paid holidays. 
   
 4. Presidents’ Day will be a paid holidays. 
   
 B. School-year classified employees shall be paid for the following 

holidays when they occur on days which they would have worked if 
it were not for that special day, subject to the provisions above: 

   
  Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 
   



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 13 of 15 
 
  Presidents Day 
   
  Memorial Day 
   
  Labor Day 
   
  Thanksgiving Day and the following Friday (two (2) days) 

   
  Christmas Day - (if celebrated on a weekend, it will be a paid holiday 

on the Friday preceding or the Monday following) 
 
Vacations 
 
 A. A full-time employee who has, as of December 31, been employed by 

the Elkhart Community Schools for less than one (1) calendar year, 
shall be entitled to one (1) working day vacation with pay during the 
next calendar year, for each full month of employment completed, 
provided that no more than ten (10) vacation days may be accrued. 

   
 B. A full-time employee who has, as of December 31 of each year, been 

employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for that entire 
calendar year, shall be entitled to ten (10) working days vacation 
with pay during the next calendar year. 

   
 C. A full-time employee who has, as of December 31 of each year, been 

employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for six (6) consecutive 
years, is entitled to fifteen (15) working days vacation with pay 
during the next calendar year. 

   
 D. A full-time employee who has, as of December 31 of each year, been 

employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for fifteen (15) 
consecutive years, is entitled to twenty (20) working days vacation 
with pay during the next calendar year. 

   
 E. A full-time employee who has, as of December 31 of each year, been 

employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for twenty (20) 
consecutive years, is entitled to twenty-five (25) working days 
vacation with pay during the next calendar year. 

   
 F. Years shall be considered "consecutive" so long as any interruption 

of service did not include other employment. 
   



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 14 of 15 
 
 G. For the sole purpose of determining vacation benefit eligibility; 

employees who transfer from a school-year position to a 12-month 
position will be granted years of service based on the following 
conversion formula. NOTE: the years of service conversion is only 
applicable for the purpose of vacation benefits. This computation does 
not replace the total years of service invested with Elkhart Community 
Schools for the purposes of Retirement benefits or Staff Recognition.   
 
The employee’s employment record with Elkhart Community 
Schools for all positions held will be considered. Using the number 
of paid hours per day, multiplied by the number of paid days per 
school year, divided by 2080 to obtain the number of years 
equivalent to a 12-month position. The total number of equivalent 
years will be rounded up to nearest whole number. 
 
The calculated number of years of service will be used in 
determining the total number of day’s vacation which such full-time 
employee is entitled to receive under this policy. The employee will 
receive the total amount of awarded vacation days effective the 
January following their date of conversion. Prior to completing one 
full year of service, the employee will be entitled to a prorated 
amount of vacation days based on the calculation formula 
referenced in the paragraph above. 

   
 H. Dates requested for use as vacation days shall be submitted to the 

immediate supervisor prior to the first day of requested vacation, 
and shall be subject to the approval of the immediate supervisor. 

   
 I. Vacation days will be available to the staff member during the 

twelve (12) months of the calendar year and for six (6) months beyond. 
   
 J. Only 12-month employees will be entitled to paid vacation days. 
   
 K. Radio Station Manager and Data and Assessments Manager shall be 

eligible for twenty (20) days of vacation each contract year, exclusive 
of weekends and holidays, at a time(s) approved by the staff 
member's immediate supervisor(s).  Upon completion of five (5) years 
of employment with the Elkhart Community Schools in such 
position, or when previous employment provided relatively 
comparable experience, said managers shall be eligible for twenty-
five (25) days of vacation each year.   
 



policy 

 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 15 of 15 
 

Vacation days will be available to the said managers during the 
twelve (12) months of the calendar year and for six (6) months 
beyond.  Unused vacation days will not be cumulative after the 
expiration of the eighteen (18) month period and shall at that time 
be transferred to sick leave and be available for use as sick leave 
days, provided at no time may more than the number of hours equal 
to the number of scheduled workdays in the current year 

accumulate for use as sick leave. 
 
 
August 14, 2018December 11, 2018 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PROPERTY 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 7510/page 1 of 6 
 
 
 
 

USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES AND PROPERTY 

 
 

School, School-Related, Community-Sponsored Organizations 
 
Included are officially organized groups of Elkhart Community Schools’ students, 
groups of Elkhart Community Schools’ employees, parent-teacher groups, other 
school-sponsored groups, 4-H Club, Future Farmers, YMCA, YWCA, Elkhart 
Education Foundation, Boy and Girl Scouts, and similar non-sectarian groups. 
 

A. The principal of the building gives approval for the building use and 
schedules the activity.  Approval for facility use must be obtained 
from the Building Services Office, contingent upon eligibility for use 
of the facility and the building principal's authorization to schedule 
the activity.  Use of school facilities by community groups requires 
at least seventy-two (72) hours' advance notice. 

 
B. An Elkhart Community Schools staff member must be present at all 

times during the use of the building. 
 
C. Keys to the building shall be given only to members of the staff, who 

assume full responsibility for the conduct of the school activity 
excluding from the building all who are not a part of the activity, 
and securing the building at the conclusion of the event (lights 
turned off, doors and windows closed and locked, and security 
system activated). 

 
D. The building rental fee may be waived if the activity does not involve 

an admission charge or a profit-making project and a regular 
custodian or authorized school representative is on duty. 

 
 Actual building costs will be charged for activities which require an 

admission charge, are a profit-making project, or a special program 
which requires school personnel to be present other than during 
normal working hours. 

 
Community Groups –  Community Groups such as YWCA, YMCA, NAACP, Black 

Expo, Tri-Kappa, Hispanic Health Coalition, League of 
Women Voters, etc. 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PROPERTY 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 7510/page 2 of 6 
 
 

A. Approval for the use of school facilities is granted under the policies 
of the Board of School Trustees, and contracting parties shall be 
required to sign a permit and conform to all rules and laws 
governing the use of public buildings, including the swimming pools. 

 
B. Approval for facility use must be obtained from the Building Services 

Office, contingent upon eligibility for use of the facility and the 
building principal's authorization to schedule the activity.  Use of 
school facilities by community groups requires at least 
seventy-two (72) hours' advance notice. 

 
 Building facilities are available for educational or cultural programs 

sponsored by community groups and recreational purposes when 
such use does not interfere with the school program. 

 
C. The schedule for the swimming pools is kept by the Athletic 

Director/Designee, who confirms all requests for the use of the pool 
with the Building Services Office. 

 
 Fees shall be paid seventy-two (72) hours before the scheduled 

opening of the facilities unless the contracting parties have made 
other arrangements with the Building Services Office.  The building 
use fee covers the use of utilities and personnel required to 
supervise the facility.  The building principal is responsible for 
employing the personnel and approving payment for their services. 

 
 Elementary gymnasiums are available for use by local, established 

community groups for basketball or volleyball Monday through 
Friday, school days, October 1 - April 30 from 7 to 9:30 p.m.  
Groups are requested to provide their own balls and use proper gym 
shoes.  School standards and nets may be used. 

 
Park and Recreational Department 
 
School buildings and grounds shall be available for use by the Park and Recreation 
Department, provided such use does not interfere with the use of the property for 
school purposes.  Fees, to cover the cost of utilities and school personnel required to 
be on duty, will be determined per use each year. 
 
 
 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PROPERTY 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 7510/page 3 of 6 
 
Churches 
 
The Board may rent school facilities to local, established churches during times of 
expansion or extensive repairs in the congregation's own facility.  The rental may be 
approved for a period not to exceed six (6) months, after which further emergency 
rental may be continued with approval from the Board for a period not to exceed 
six (6) additional months. 

 
Newly formed congregations must give evidence of site purchase, as well as 
completion date of facility, prior to entering into the six (6) month agreement. 
 
Other 
 
The Superintendent may lease school property for purposes authorized under this 
policy or approved by the Board and at a shall develop a schedule of fees for rentals 
established by the Board provided such use does not interfere with the use of the 
property for school purposes. 
 
Use of outside areas such as the baseball diamonds, tennis courts, tracks, where no 
rentals or rental fees are involved, are the responsibility of the building principal, 
Athletic Director or Activity Director, who may or may not grant permission to 
out-of-school groups for use of these facilities. 
 
Restrictions 
 
Individuals and organizations may not use school facilities without first submitting a 
certificate of insurance. 
 
No person(s) or organization(s) may use any school facilities for personal or 
corporate financial gain. 
 
The use of school facilities by out-of-school groups shall be confined to local, 
established organizations whose regular meeting place, headquarters, and principal 
membership are located within the boundaries of the Elkhart Community Schools 
District.  An "established organization" is one which has been in existence a 
minimum of two (2) years, complete with charter and by-laws, and conducts regular 
meetings.  Such facilities shall be used only for educational, cultural, or recreational 
purposes.  All proceeds shall be devoted to a local public or charitable purpose, 
specified in advance of preparation of the building permitrental agreement. 
 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PROPERTY 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 7510/page 4 of 6 
 
School facilities shall not be available for such activities as private parties, 
weddings, receptions, family reunions, open house receptions, political fund raising 
events, funerals, etc. 
 
No tobacco or alcohol use is permitted on any Elkhart Community School property. 
 
The “use of tobacco” shall mean all uses of tobacco, including a cigar, cigarette, 

pipe, snuff, or any other matter or substance that contains tobacco, as well as 
electronic, “vapor,” or other substitute forms of cigarettes. 
 
In order to protect students and staff from the adverse impact of tobacco smoke on 
indoor air quality and encourage students to not use tobacco in any form, the Board 
prohibits the use of tobacco within any facility owned or leased or contracted for by 
the Board. 
 
The Board shall not permit the manufacture, possession, use, distribution, or 
dispensing of any controlled substance, including alcohol, and any drug 
paraphernalia, within any facility owned or leased or contracted for by the Board. 
 
Food Service Facilities 

 
When food-serving facilities of the schools are used, the user must comply with 
public health regulations. 
 
A food service employee must be in charge of the kitchen and equipment when food 
is prepared or served. 
 
School-related organizations using the cafeteria and facilities for a fund-raising 
project shall pay for all food and labor costs, including the food service employee, 
custodial services, and/or any other expenses incurred by the project. 
 
Dinners may be served to school-related groups outside of school hours.  The cost of 
the dinner will be determined by the Director of Food Services or designee. 
 
School cafeterias and kitchens may be used by out-of-school groups when not in 
competition with established local businesses, in accordance with all guidelines and 
fees. 
 
Facilities available for Community Use when not required for School Purposes 
 
 
 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PROPERTY 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 7510/page 5 of 6 
 
Auditoriums 
 
 Elkhart Central High School 
 Elkhart Memorial High School 
 Elkhart Memorial High School Little Theater 
 Elkhart Area Career Center Auditorium 
 

Cafeterias - Cafetoriums* 
 
 Elkhart Central High School 
 Elkhart Memorial High School 
 Elkhart Area Career Center (Blue Room) 
 *North Side Middle School 
 *Pierre Moran Middle School 
 *West Side Middle School 
 
Gymnasiums - All Purpose Rooms* 
 

Elkhart Central High School Pierre Moran Middle School 
Elkhart Memorial High School West Side Middle School 
North Side Middle School  
  
Beardsley Elementary School Hawthorne Elementary School 
Beck Elementary School Monger Elementary School 
*Bristol Elementary School Osolo Elementary School 
*Cleveland Elementary School Pinewood Elementary School 
Daly Elementary School Riverview Elementary School 
Eastwood Elementary School Roosevelt Elementary School 
Feeser Elementary School Woodland Elementary School 
  

Athletic Fields/Elementary Playgrounds (Football, Track, Tennis Courts, 
Baseball/Softball Diamonds, Elementary Soccer Fields*) 
 
Athletic Fields: 
 

Elkhart Central High School (with the exception of Rice Field) 
Elkhart Memorial High School Pierre Moran Middle School 
North Side Middle School West Side Middle School 

 
Playgrounds: 
 

Beardsley Elementary School Hawthorne Elementary School 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PROPERTY 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 7510/page 6 of 6 
 

Beck Elementary School Monger Elementary School 
Bristol Elementary School Osolo Elementary School 
Cleveland Elementary School *Pinewood Elementary School 
Daly Elementary School Riverview Elementary School 
*Eastwood Elementary School Roosevelt Primary SchoolSTEAM 

Academy 
*Feeser Elementary School Woodland Elementary School 

  
Swimming Pools: 
 

Elkhart Central High School  
Elkhart Memorial High School  

 
Community Use of Equipment 
 
Audio-visual, music, industrial arts, and other school equipment may be used by 
staff members in school-community activities which are compatible with the interest 
of Elkhart Community Schools. 
 
Loan of equipment to the Park and Recreation Department and school-related 
organizations may be made when the equipment is not in use by the school and 
when it will be used by a trained operator. 
 
In all cases, approval for the loan or use of school equipment outside of the regular 
school program must be obtained from the Building Services Office and/or the 
appropriate building principal.  The organization requesting the equipment is 
responsible for picking it up and returning it as designated by the building principal. 
 
The organization requesting the equipment shall be liable for, indemnify and hold 
the Elkhart Community Schools harmless from loss and expenses because of any 
and all damage or injury incurred by the use of such equipment.  The organization 
shall also be required to provide a certificate of insurance demonstrating that such 
insurance is in effect during the time of the use of such equipment. 
 
The Elkhart Community Schools will not loan or allow the use of personal property, 
furniture and equipment, which place Elkhart Community Schools in competition 
with local businesses, to persons or organizations other than those named above.  
 
January 1, 2017December 11, 2018 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OPERATIONS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 8452.01/page 1 of 1 
 
 
 

RESCUE EPINEPHRINEADMINISTRATION OF STOCK EMERGENCY 
MEDICINES 

 
 

The Assistant Superintendent of Student Services will request the County Health 
Officer for the Elkhart County Health Department sign a standing order and 
prescription for Elkhart Community Schools to provide rescue medications including 
epinephrine, naloxone, and albuterol according toin accordance with Indiana code.  
Following storage guidelines of the medications, the Corporation will attempt to 
provide rescue epinephrine and naloxone injection and albuterol inhalation devices 
in the school nurse’s office. 
 
Epinephrine and naloxone injection and albuterol inhalation training for select 
employees, including the school nurse, will be provided by the Corporation.  
 
Any medical use of rescue epinephrine medication will be documented. 
 
I.C. 20-34-4.5 (SEA 392) 
 
 
January 1, 2018December 11, 2018 





































 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

To:   Mr. Mark Mow 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  December 11, 2018 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Agreement – We recommend the approval of two agreements regarding unpaid time. 

 

 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2018-19 school year: 

 

Scott Allen   Pinewood/Special Education 

 

Addison Gring   Roosevelt/Grade 3 

 

Kathryn Roberts  Feeser/Grade 3 

 

c. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employee at the end of the 2018-19 school: 

 

Vicki Rogers  North Side/Math 43 Years of Service 

 

 

d. Leave – We recommend a personal leave for the following employee: 

 

Rhiannon Harrison  Central/Assistant Principal 

Begin:  1/7/19   End:  6/28/19 

 

 

 

CLASSIFIED 

 

a. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following classified employees: 

 

Roger Alwine   Commissary/Misc Food Service Truck Driver 

Began:  10/5/18   PE:  12/7/18 

 

Marilyn Bender  EACC/Paraprofessional 

Began: 10/3/18   PE: 12/5/18 

 

Saul Chorro Romero  Bristol/Custodian 

Began: 10/2/18   PE: 11/28/18 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Jessica Dubose   Beardsley/Food Service 

Began: 10/8/18   PE: 12/10/18 

 

Karen Fraire Vargas  West Side/Food Service 

Began:  8/27/18   PE:  10/21/18 

 

Bethanie Hartman  Beck/Paraprofessional 

Began: 10/8/18   PE: 12/10/18 

 

Tina Helbling   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 10/1/18   PE: 12/3/18 

 

Starr Laughman  Memorial/Food Service 

Began: 10/8/18   PE: 12/10/18 

 

Samantha McGinnis  Commissary/Food Service 

Began: 9/28/18   PE: 11/30/18 

 

Colette Morris   Central/Food Service 

Began:  9/24/18   PE:  11/26/18 

 

 Brandon Shaw   Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 9/28/18   PE: 11/30/18 

 

Hailey Vinsant   Bristol/Food Service 

Began: 10/8/18   PE: 12/10/18 

 

b. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following classified employee:   

 

Pamela Murphy  Cleveland/Occupational Therapist 

Began:  2/2/04   Retire: 1/7/19 

    14 Years of Service 

 

c. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees: 

 

Jill Barfell   ESC/Executive Assistant 

Began: 4/24/09   Resign: 1/4/19 

 

Sharon Kirkpatrick  Pierre Moran/Food Service 

Began:  10/5/15   Resign: 12/8/18 

 

Cindy Westfall   Woodland/Registered Nurse 

Began: 2/21/17   Resign: 12/21/18 

 

 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

d. Unpaid Leave  – We recommend an unpaid leave of the following classified employee: 

 

Clara Hendrix   Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 11/25/18  End: 5/25/19 

 

e. Termination – We report the termination of the following classified employee: 

Eddie Neal, Jr.   Central/Paraprofessional 

Began:  1/11/17   End:  12/11/18 

    Board Policy:  3139.01s   c, f, g 

 
 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	Minutes - Public Work Session November 27 2018
	Minutes - Regular Meeting November 27 2018
	Minutes - Special Meeting December 4 2018
	Gift Acceptance - MHS Athletic
	Bond Sale Results
	Fundraiser Requests
	Fuel Bid Memo
	Board Policy 3422.06S
	Board Policy 3422.12S
	Board Policy 7510
	Board Policy 8452.01
	Memo - Recommendation Regarding Stipends for Support Staff
	Sample - EACC Agreement
	Overnight Trip Request
	Superintendent's Contract
	Conference Leave Request - Perkins
	Conference Leave Request
	Personnel Report

